
Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

1 
 

      
AGENDA 

CRAVEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR SESSION 

MONDAY, AUGUST 3, 2015 
7:00 P.M. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL   
 
INVOCATION 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVE AGENDA 
 
APPROVE MINUTES OF JULY 6, 2015 REGULAR SESSION AND JUNE 15, 2015 
RECONVENED SESSION 
 
1. PETITIONS OF CITIZENS 
 
2. CARTS MATTERS 

A. Request for Memorandum of Agreement with State Board of Elections:  Ted 
Fitzgerald, Lead Voter Outreach Specialist, NC State Board of Elections 

B. Transportation Development Plan Presentation:  Kelly Walker, Transportation 
Director 

C. Public Hearing for Proposed Fare Increase 
 
3. INTERFAITH REFUGEE MINISTRY PRESENTATION:  Susan Husson, 

Executive Director 
 
4. PRESENTATION CONCERNING TARGET SHOOTING IN CROATAN 

NATIONAL FOREST:  Jim Gumm, District Ranger 
 

5. PRESENTATION ON STREAM DEBRIS REMOVAL PROJECT:  Patrick Baker, 
Natural Resources Conservationist; Chad Strawn, Assistant Planning Director; 
Gene Hodges, Assistant County Manager – Facilities/Operations 
 

6. REQUEST FOR RESOLUTION – “STEPPING UP” INITIATIVE:  Commissioner 
Dacey 
 
DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS 
 

7. SOCIAL SERVICES – BUDGET AMENDMENT:  Alfreda Stout, Deputy Director, 
Social Services 



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

2 
 

8. REGISTER OF DEEDS – BUDGET AMENDMENT:  Sherri Richard, Register of 
Deeds and Jack Veit, County Manager 

 
9. RECREATION – REQUEST TO DEED SPRING GARDEN LANDING AND 

COWPEN LANDING TO NC WILDLIFE COMMISSION:  Eddie Games, 
Recreation Director 
 

10. TAX:  Ronnie Antry, Tax Administrator 
A. Tax Releases and Refunds 
B. 2014 Tax Collection Settlement 
C. Charge to the Tax Collector 
D. 2016 Revaluation Update and Schedule:  Ronnie Antry and Glenn Jones, 

Chief Appraiser 
 
11. EMERGENCY SERVICES – REQUEST FOR MEMORANDUM OF 

AGREEMENT WITH CITY OF NEW BERN FOR 911 BACK UP:  Stanley Kite, 
Emergency Services Director 

 
12. PLANNING 

A. FY 13 FMA Elevation Project Contract Award Recommendation:  Reed 
Whitesell, Holland Consulting Planner 

B. Subdivision for Approval – Elizabeth W. Ipock:  Don Baumgarnder, Planning 
Director 

 
13. FINANCE – BUDGET AMENDMENT:  Rick Hemphill, Assistant County Manager 

– Finance/Administration 
 
14. APPOINTMENTS 

 
15. COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:  Jim Hicks 

 
16. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT:  Jack Veit 

 
17. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 

 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

3 
 

Presenter:       
Agenda Item No. 1     
Board Action Required or Considered: No   

 
 
 
 
 
 

PETITIONS OF CITIZENS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Action:  Receive Information 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

4 
 

      Presenters: Kelly Walker, Ted Fitzgerald    
      Agenda Item No. 2     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 

CARTS MATTERS 
 

A. REQUEST FOR MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MOA) WITH STATE 
BOARD OF ELECTIONS 

 
At the Board’s last meeting, Transportation Director, Kelly Walker, presented a request 
for adoption of the Memorandum of Agreement shown as Attachment #2.A.  The Board 
requested that an elections representative appear to provide clarification concerning 
some of the questions that arose at that time. 
 
Board Action:  Consideration adoption of the MOA. 
 
B. REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF THE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN 
 
 
The Craven County Transportation Development Plan Final Report was completed June 
2015.  It is the result of months of work by Wendel Companies and Craven County staff.   
 
This plan was made public at the Craven County Board of Commissioner’s Meeting July 
6, 2015.  Craven Area Rural Transportation System has discussed this plan at multiple 
public information meetings.  It has also been on the CARTS webpage.   Comments 
received thus far regarding this plan have been positive. 
 
The Transportation Development Plan (TDP), if approved, will serve as a guide for 
CARTS operations over the course of the next year.  The primary goal of year one of 
the transition into being a small urban, as well as rural system, is to minimize the 
impacts to riders, agencies, and Craven County.  The TDP assesses the steps 
necessary to move forward with that goal. 
 

CARTS would like to request a final opportunity for public comment regarding this plan.  
After those comments, if any, are heard CARTS would like to request approval of the 
TDP. 
 
Board Action:  Request approval of the Transportation Development Plan after 
Public Hearing 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

5 
 

 
 

C. REQUEST PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD AND APPROVAL OF THE 
PROPOSED FARE INCREASE  

The Transportation Development Plan Final Report 2015 completed by Wendel 
Companies recommends a fare structure for Craven Area Rural Transit System 
(CARTS) based on demand and cost figures.  We are considering the fare structure to 
be a fare increase because we are asking that passengers previously not required to 
pay a fare begin doing so.  Those passengers not paying a fare were riding under the 
Elderly and Disabled Transportation Assistance Program (EDTAP) which is no longer 
available in the urbanized area.  This proposed fare increase is a direct result of the 
changes in funding due to the designation of the New Bern urbanized area.  The 
proposed fare increase is purposefully designed to only affect the areas affected by 
those funding changes. 

CARTS is also asking a change in the structure of fees charged to contracting agencies 
paying a shared cost per mile.  Currently, some contracts pay a shared cost per 
revenue mile and some pay a shared cost per service mile.  CARTS is asking that all 
contract agencies pay a shared cost per revenue mile and that amount reflect the fully 
allocated cost of operating CARTS.  This price would be applicable regardless of the 
transportation services being considered “rural” or “urban” services.   

CARTS held multiple public information meetings regarding the proposed fare structure.   

A general summary of the comments received so far is a concern regarding the financial 
impact to passengers previously not contributing to the cost of the transportation 
services received. (See Attachment #2.C.)  Those same commenters also agreed that 
the proposed fare increase is reasonable and necessary to sustain the services 
provided by CARTS. 

Board Action:  Public hearing then approval of the Transportation Development 
Plan, including the proposed fare increase 
 
 
 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

6 
 

      Presenter: Susan Husson     
      Agenda Item No. 3     
      Board Action Required or Considered: No   
 
 
 
 

INTERFAITH REFUGEE MINISTRY PRESENTATION 
 

At the Board’s request, Executive Director Interfaith Refugee Ministry, Susan Husson, 
will appear to inform the Board of the activities of Interfaith Refugee Ministry. 

 
 

Board Action:  Receive information. 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

7 
 

      Presenter: Jim Gumm     
      Agenda Item No. 4     
      Board Action Required or Considered: No   
 
 
 
 
 
 

PRESENTATION CONCERNING TARGET SHOOTING IN CROATAN NATIONAL 
FOREST 

 
Attachment # 4 contains documents Mr. Gumm is using to close the Croatan National 
Forest to target shooting. This closure has no impact on lawful hunting. 

 
 

Board Action:  Receive information. 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

8 
 

      Presenters: Patrick Baker, Chad Strawn, Gene Hodges  
      Agenda Item No. 5     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 
 
 
 

PRESENTATION ON STREAM DEBRIS REMOVAL PROJECT 
 

Patrick Baker, Natural Resources Conservationist; Chad Strawn, Assistant Planning 
Director; and Gene Hodges, Assistant County Manager-Facilities/Operations, will make 
a presentation on the Stream Debris Removal Project, as detailed in Attachment #5. 

 
 
 

 Board Action:  Approval of County funding for snagging and beaver 
management, and award of the contract to the recommended contractor. 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

9 
 

      Presenter: Commissioner Dacey    
      Agenda Item No. 6     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR RESOLUTION – “STEPPING UP” INITIATIVE 
 

Commissioner Dacey will present the resolution appearing as Attachment #6 for the 
Board’s consideration. 

 
 

Board Action:  Consider adoption of resolution. 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

10 
 

      Presenter: Alfreda Stout     
      Agenda Item No. 7     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  SOCIAL SERVICES – BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 

Alfreda Stout, Deputy Director, Social Services, will present the budget amendment 
contained in Attachment #7 to adjust line items to align with funds awarded for the 
Home & Community Care Block Grant (HCCBG) from the Division of Aging for Fiscal 
Year 2015/16.   

 
 
 

Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve budget amendment 
 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

11 
 

      Presenters: Sherri Richard, Jack Veit   
      Agenda Item No. 8     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  REGISTER OF DEEDS – BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 

Register of Deeds, Sherri Richard, and County Manager, Jack Veit, will present the 
following budget amendment of for the Board’s consideration. 
 

Backfile Scanning Project 2015/2016 
 
Searching historic property records in Craven County is about to get a whole lot easier. 
Within the next year, all land records from 1739 to the present will be available for 
viewing from any computer, anywhere, anytime. This should reduce the time that it 
takes to perform a title/property search and therefore, reduce the time and cost involved 
in closing a loan.  
 
The backfile scanning project also insures that all of our records are backed up and can 
be recreated in case of a catastrophic event such as flooding or fire. 
 
Our vendor, Cott Systems, will bring their equipment to our office and scan everything 
on-site. The original plan this year was essentially to catch the images up with the 
indexes which would have been the documents from 1983 forward to 1994.  The rest of 
the project was broken down into a 5 year plan and we had budgeted to that end. 
However, we have seen the benefit of having the vendor go ahead and scan everything 
at once instead of bringing their staff and equipment back and forth from Ohio.  
 
The Cott scanning team is currently in Pitt County performing the same function that it 
will be providing for us. We would like to get the contracts signed in time to have them 
come directly here from Greenville. This is a time consuming process and we don’t want 
to lose the opportunity to get them while they’re close. If we miss this chance, it may be 
six months or more before we can get them back. 
 
The total cost of the scanning project is $213,500. This will include scanning all records 
from 1739 to present; the scanning of the index books with book and page linkage to 
the scanned document; the redaction of all Social Security and drivers’ license numbers 
using sophisticated OCR; and a quality control process to be sure that each scanned 
page is as neat and clean as it can be. 

 
Board Action:  A roll call vote will be needed to approve budget amendment if 
approved. 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

12 
 

      Presenter: Eddie Games     
      Agenda Item No. 9     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  RECREATION – REQUEST TO DEED SPRING 
GARDEN LANDING AND COWPEN LANDING TO NC WILDLIFE COMMISSION 

 
On November 1, 2004, the Craven County Commissioners approved allowing the NC 
Wildlife Commission to take ownership and control of the Maple Cypress boat landing 
and also to make future improvements to the Cowpen and Spring Garden sites. On 
June 18, 2007, Craven County entered into an agreement with NC Wildlife to provide 
free public boating access at Cowpen and Spring Garden. In 2011, NC Wildlife 
completed the renovation of the Spring Garden site and in 2014 completely renovated 
Cowpen Landing. In 2012, Recreation Director, Eddie Games, had conversations with 
officials from NC Wildlife to either enter into a partnership with NC Wildlife or deed the 
properties over to them whereas they would be fully responsible for the maintenance 
and upkeep of both locations. On June 18, 2013, the County acquired the deed for the 
Spring Garden boat landing site. This property previously belonged to the Craven 
County School Board, which for years agreed to allow the County to operate the boat 
landing. After acquiring the property from the school board in 2013 and having the 
Cowpen site renovated in 2014, it seemed more feasible to transfer ownership of both 
of these properties to the NC Wildlife Commission. The NC Wildlife Commission will 
fully maintain and operate both sites. The County will benefit from this transaction by 
lowering our maintenance cost of mowing both properties yearly plus eliminating any 
liability. NC Wildlife Commission will also be able to better monitor the sites and enforce 
wildlife violations. We are requesting to transfer the deeds of both Cowpen and Spring 
Garden Landings over to the NC Wildlife Commission. 

 

Board Action:  Approval of transaction. 

  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

13 
 

      Presenters: Ronnie Antry, Glenn Jones   
      Agenda Item No. 10     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  TAX 
 

A. TAX RELEASES AND REFUNDS 
 
Craven County Tax Administrator, Ronnie Antry, will present the routine requests for tax 
releases and refunds contained in Attachment #10.A. for the Board’s approval. 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve the tax releases and refunds. 
 
B. 2014 TAX COLLECTION SETTLEMENT 
 
NCGS 105-373 requires that before he is charged with collection of the tax levy for the 
current year, the tax collector must make settlement of the previous year’s levy.  The 
attached documents provide that information.  (See Attachment #10.B.) 
 
Board Action:  Vote to accept the 2014 tax collection settlement and enter the 
same into the minutes. 
 
C. CHARGE TO THE TAX COLLECTOR 
 
NCGS 105-321(b) requires that after he has settled the collection of the 2014 taxes, the 
tax collector is charged with collection of the tax levy for the current year. 
 
Board Action:  Adopt the order for the collection of 2015 taxes and enter the same 
into the minutes. 
 
2016 REVALUATION UPDATE AND SCHEDULE 
 
The revaluation effort is underway which will culminate in notices being mailed next 
February.  Mr. Antry and Mr. Jones would like to update the Board on their activities 
thus far and plan for things coming up for the near future. 
 
Board Action:  Receive information 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

14 
 

      Presenter: Stanley Kite     
      Agenda Item No. 11     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  EMERGENCY SERVICES – REQUEST FOR 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (MOA) WITH THE CITY OF NEW BERN 

FOR 911 BACK UP 
 

Craven County Emergency Services has been working with the New Bern Police 
Department Communications Division Director to establish a Memorandum of 
Agreement for Emergency failures of the 911 Centers.  The document has been 
reviewed by staff and Mr. Hicks and has been presented to the New Bern Board of 
Aldermen for approval.  Approval by the Craven County Board of Commissioners is 
needed. 
 
This document is mandated as part of the planning process for backup 911 facilities and 
we must comply by June 2016.  Emergency Services Director, Stanley Kite, will present 
the Memorandum of Agreement contained in Attachment #11 to the Commissioners on 
August 3, 2015 and ask for their approval and signature of the Chairman. 

 
 
Board Action:  Approve and authorize the Chairman to execute the document. 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

15 
 

      Presenter: Reed Whitesell, Don Baumgardner  
      Agenda Item No. 12     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  PLANNING 
 

A. FY 13 FMA ELEVATION PROJECT CONTRACT AWARD RECOMMENDATION 
 
A bid opening for the Craven County FY13 Flood Mitigation Elevation Project was held 
on July 16th. Bids were received by twenty-five (25) regional general contractors. 
 
Contract awards as recommended: 
Unit Address                                                  Contractor                                           Amount  
               
Unit #1 / 902 Spar Ct.     Paul Woolard Construction                 $113,577 

Unit #2 / 3302 Country Club Rd.                    IMEC                             $126,100 

Unit #3 / 1616 Brice’s Creek Rd.           Paul Woolard Construction       $88,245 

Unit #4 / 214 Riverside Dr.           IMEC        $85,300 

Unit #5 / 127/129 Duck’s Way          IMEC        $109,400  

Note: Contract Award Memo and bid tab are contained in Attachment #12.A. 

Board Action:  A vote to approve the contract award is needed to move forward 
with the project. 

B. SUBDIVISION FOR APPROVAL 
 
Craven County Planning Director, Don Baumgardner, will present the following 
subdivision for the Board’s approval.  The Planning Board met on July 27th and 
recommended the subdivision for approval: 
 
Elizabeth W. Ipock – Final 
-Property is owned by Elizabeth W. Ipock and surveyed by Gaskins Surveying, PLS 
-Property is located within Twp. 8, off of Ipock Ln. 
-Parcel ID 8-224-015 
-Subdivision contains 4 lots on 14.587 acres 
-Lots proposed to be served by community water and individual septic systems 
 
Board Action:  A vote to approve the subdivision is needed. 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

16 
 

      Presenter: Rick Hemphill     
      Agenda Item No. 13     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  FINANCE – BUDGET AMENDMENT 
 

Assistant County Manager of Finance/Administration, Rick Hemphill, will present the 
following budget amendment for the Board’s approval. (See Attachment #13). 
 
 
Amendments: IT Dept/Capital Reserve – Two Information Technology projects 
were started in FY ’15 and will be finished in FY ’16.  Funding of $27,500 for video 
arraignment project (Juris Link) and $13,250 for mobile software upgrade (New World) 
is needed from Capital Reserve to complete these projects. 
   
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve the budget amendment. 
 
    
 

  
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

17 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 14     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 

A. CURRENT 
B. PENDING 
C. UPCOMING 
 
 
Board Action:  Appointments will be effective immediately, unless otherwise 
specified. 
 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

18 
 

A. PENDING APPOINTMENT(S): 
 
HAVELOCK BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT        
AUTHORIZATION: Havelock City Code – Article XI      
MISSION/FUNCTION:      
         
         
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
7      City of Havelock   
1      Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (County)  
1      Extraterritorial alternate (County) 
       
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
County appointees must reside in the extraterritorial areas of the City of Havelock.  
    
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE:3rd Wednesday of the month at 7:30 p.m., and at the call of the Chair 
       
Term(s) ending: ETJ Alternate vacancy pending since March 
 
Application on file: Reuben Mikul (Attachment # 14.A.) 
  

  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

19 
 

JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL        
AUTHORIZATION:  N.C.G.S. 147-33.66 
MISSION/FUNCTION: To assess the needs of juveniles in the community, evaluate the 
adequacy of resources available and develop or propose ways to address unmet needs. 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:  TYPE: 
25 (maximum)    From among the following categories, or in some   
     instances, the designees of the specified position:   
     school superintendent, chief of police, sheriff, district  
     attorney, chief court counselor, area mental health director,  
     social services director, county manager, substance abuse  
     professional, member of faith community, county   
     commissioner, person under the age of 21, juvenile 
defense      attorney, chief district court judge, member of the 
business       community, local health director, non-profit  
       representative, parks and recreation 
representative,        up to seven additional 
members appointed by the        Board of 
Commissioners 
      
LENGTH OF TERMS:  2 Years 
MEETING SCHEDULE:  2nd Monday of the month 12:30 p.m.        
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
Term(s) expiring:  Jennifer Knight (needs to be a representative of the business community.) 
  
No applications on file. 
     
    



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

20 
 

B. CURRENT APPOINTMENTS 
 
CRAVEN COUNTY COMMUNITY CHILD PROTECTION TEAM 
AUTHORIZATION:  NCGS 7B-1406      
MISSION/FUNCTION: To respond to child protection needs before a child is harmed by taking 
action to identify and address gaps or deficiencies in services and resources   
through the annual report to the County Board of Commissioners, collaboration with  
community partners, promoting public awareness and advocating for action that   
addresses the child protection needs of each county.       
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:  TYPE: 
11-16     DSS Director, DSS staff member, law enforcement   
     officer, attorney from DA’s office, executive   
     director of local community action agency, public  
     School superintendent or designee, member of DSS 
     Board, mental health professional, Guardian ad   
     Litem Coordinator, Public Health Director, local  
     health care provider, EMS/firefighter, District Court  
     Judge, Commissioners appointees from other   
     county agencies or community at-large 
  
QUALIFICATIONS:      Stated above. 
LENGTH OF TERMS:   As set by respective agencies, position and Commissioners’ 
MEETING SCHEDULE:   Quarterly; January, April, July, October  
 
Term(s) ending:   Debra Kenyear (Appointed 2012) 
 
No applications on file. 



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

21 
 

ADULT CARE HOME ADVISORY COMMITTEE       
AUTHORIZATION: N.C.G.S.131D-31 
MISSION/FUNCTION: Work to maintain the intent of the Domiciliary Home Residents Bill of  
        Rights within the licensed homes in the County; to promote 
community         involvement and cooperation with domiciliary homes to ensure 
quality          care for the elderly and disabled adults 
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
9-11      Dictated by the number of homes in the county; 
      homes have right to recommend 25% of appointees 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
Cannot be employed by or have a relative in an adult care home.      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE:             
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
Term(s) ending:  Kathy Nelson (Appointed 2012) 
    Jessica James (Resigned) 
No applications on file. 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

22 
 

EMS (EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES) ADVISORY COUNCIL     
AUTHORIZATION: Bylaws  
MISSION/FUNCTION: Develops and recommends for approval by the Board of Commissioners 
standards of care, procedures and actions which will maintain and improve the quality of 
emergency Medical Services for the residents of Craven County. 
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
28      County Manager (or representative), County  
      Emergency Services Director, Representative from  
      each Craven County Emergency Medical Services  
      Provider, representative from each authorized First  
      Responder Provider, hospital president (or   
      designee), Craven County Medical Director,  
      physician nominated by Craven County Medical  
      Society, representative from Craven County   
      Communications, representative from Craven  
      County Firemen’s Association, hospital Emergency  
      Room Supervisor, citizen (non-provider affiliated),  
      Community College Dean of Continuing 
Education,       representative nominated by Craven County 
Law        Enforcement Association, representative 
from naval       hospital aboard MCAS Cherry Point, ad hoc 
       members (ECCOG EMS Director, OEMS 
Regional        Coordinator, American Red Cross 
Director 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
(See above)      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 2 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: Bi-monthly        
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
Term(s) ending: David Short, Provider (Appointed 2013) 
   Reappointment is requested. 
 
No applications on file. 



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

23 
 

FIREMEN’S RELIEF FUND BOARD OF TRUSTEES       
AUTHORIZATION: NCGS 58-84-30 
MISSION/FUNCTION: To safeguard firefighters in active service and dependent members of  
        their families from financial loss resulting from sickness, injury or loss  
        of life  suffered while in performance of his or her duties as a   
        firefighter. 
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
5 per department    2 appointed by Board of Commissioners; 2   
      appointed by the department; 1 appointed by  
      Commissioner of Insurance 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
           
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 2 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: As necessary        
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
Term(s) ending:  Daniel New, Dover (Appointed 2013) 
    Reappointment is requested 
 
No applications on file. 
 
 
 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

24 
 

C. UPCOMING APPOINTMENTS 
 
September 
 
Clean Sweep     Robert Blair (Appointed 2012) 
      Len Long (Appointed 2012 
 
Adult Care Home Advisory   Susan Mathes (Appointed 2012) 
 
Emergency Medical Services  Crystal Tew (Appointed 2012) 
 
Jury Commission    James Muse (Appointed 2013) 
 
 
October 
 
Community Child Protection Team Dawn Gibson (Appointed 2012) 
 
Adult Care Home Advisory   Linda Chagnon (Appointed 2012) 
 
 
November 
 
Firemen’s Relief Fund   Donald Rottman (Appointed 2013) 
 
Agricultural Advisory Committee  Jackie Anderson (Appointed 2009) 
      Dale Dawson (Appointed 2009) 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

25 
 

      Presenter: Jim Hicks     
      Agenda Item No. 15     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   

 
 

COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 

A. Initial Offer to Purchase Real Property – 612 Murphy Street (#3-C-07-003) 
 
The County and Town of Cove City have received an offer in the amount of $1,500.00 
for this property, which was acquired through a tax foreclosure.  The total taxes and 
costs that were foreclosed on were $1,328.26.  Attachment #15 A contains copies of the 
offer to purchase, deed, GIS information, and proposed resolution.  The Town will 
consider this request at a subsequent meeting. 
 
Should the County and Town accept this offer, then the property will then be advertised 
for upset bids in accordance with the General Statutes.  Once no further upset bids are 
timely received, the County and Town may accept or reject the final offer. 
 
 
 
B. Initial Offer to Purchase Real Property – 2973 NC Hwy 43 (#1-052-088) 
 
The County has have received an offer in the amount of $2,500.00 for this property, 
which was acquired through a tax foreclosure.  The total taxes and costs that were 
foreclosed on were $3,167.15.  The current tax value is $41,430.00.  Attachment #15.B. 
contains copies of the offer to purchase, deed, GIS information, and proposed 
resolution.   
 
Should the County accept this offer, then the property will then be advertised for upset 
bids in accordance with the General Statutes.  Once no further upset bids are timely 
received, the County may accept or reject the final offer. 
 
 
 
C. Initial Offer to Purchase Real Property – 735 W NC Hwy 55 (#8-218-066) 
 
The County and City have received an offer in the amount of $4,000.00 for this property, 
which was acquired through a tax foreclosure.  The total taxes and costs that were 
foreclosed on were $3,529.80.  The current tax value is $23,850.00.  Attachment #15.C. 
contains copies of the offer to purchase, deed, GIS information, and proposed 
resolution.   
 
Should the County and City accept this offer, then the property will then be advertised 
for upset bids in accordance with the General Statutes.  Once no further upset bids are 
timely received, the County and City may accept or reject the final offer. 
 
 



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

26 
 

 
 
 
D. Transfer of 1306 Kinston Street (#8-014-321) to the City of New Bern 
 
The County acquired ownership of 1306 Kinston Street, New Bern through a Hazard 
Mitigation Grant Program (“HMGP”), which is a Federal grant program that provides 
funds to counties for the purpose of purchasing parcels from individuals that have 
suffered repetitive loss due to flooding.  The County used the HMGP funds to purchase 
the property from Jimmy and Janie Dillahunt on April 27, 2015 for $175,697.00.   
 
Prior to the County obtaining ownership of the property, the County and the City of New 
Bern entered into an informal agreement, whereby the County agreed to apply for 
HMGP funds to purchase the property with the understanding that it would subsequently 
be conveyed to the City, and the City would thereafter maintain the property in 
compliance with Federal regulations applicable under the HMGP. 
 
The Federal Emergency Management Agency (“FEMA”) has approved the County’s 
proposed transfer of the subject parcel to the City, and the City has also adopted a 
resolution agreeing to accept the property, and to be bound by the applicable deed 
restrictions.  The Federal regulations pursuant to which the County initially obtained title 
to the subject parcel require the County to retain a conservation easement over the 
subject parcel for the purpose of requiring that the City use the property for purposes 
consistent with applicable Federal regulations (e.g. parks, wetland management, nature 
reserve and buffer zone). 
 
Attachment #15.D. contains copies of the a proposed resolution authorizing the 
conveyance of the subject parcel to the City of New Bern, a proposed deed, and the 
FEMA approval letter. 
 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

27 
 

      Presenter: Jack Veit     
      Agenda Item No. 16     

 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT 
  



Agenda Date:     August 3, 2015  
 

28 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 17     

 
 

 
COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 
























































































































































































	Agenda20150803
	UUnit AddressU                                                  UContractorU                                           UAmountU
	UAmendments:U IT Dept/Capital Reserve – Two Information Technology projects were started in FY ’15 and will be finished in FY ’16.  Funding of $27,500 for video arraignment project (Juris Link) and $13,250 for mobile software upgrade (New World) is ne...
	Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve the budget amendment.

	Attachment #2.A
	Attachment #2.C
	Attachment #4
	Attachment #5
	Attachment #6
	Attachment #7
	Attachment #10.A
	Attachment #10.B
	Attachment #10.C
	Attachment #10.D
	Attachment #11
	Attachment #12.A
	Attachment #13
	Attachment #14.A
	Attachment #15.A
	Attachment #15.B
	Attachment #15.C
	Attachment #15.D

